
Legal and Democratic Services

STANDARDS COMMITTEE
Wednesday 16 June 2021 at 7.00 pm

Place: Council Chamber, EpsomTown Hall

Link for public online access to this meeting: 
https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/rt/226545989876168719

Webinar ID: 618-562-339

Telephone (listen-only): 0330 221 9914, Telephone Access code:377-582-480 

The members listed below are summoned to attend the Standards Committee meeting, on 
the day and at the time and place stated, to consider the business set out in this agenda.

Councillor Liz Frost (Chairman)
Councillor Alex Coley (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Kate Chinn
Councillor Hannah Dalton
Councillor Robert Foote

Councillor Christine Howells
Councillor Previn Jagutpal
Councillor Eber Kington
Councillor David Reeve

Yours sincerely

Chief Executive

For further information, please contact Democratic Services, democraticservices@epsom-
ewell.gov.uk or tel: 01372 732000

Public Document Pack

https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/rt/226545989876168719


Public information

Please note that this meeting will be held at the Town Hall, Epsom and will be 
available to observe live on the internet
This meeting will be open to the press and public to attend as an observer using free 
GoToWebinar software, or by telephone.
A link to the online address for this meeting is provided on the first page of this agenda 
and on the Council’s website. A telephone connection number is also provided on the front 
page of this agenda as a way to observe the meeting, and will relay the full audio from the 
meeting as an alternative to online connection. A limited number of seats will also be 
available in the public gallery at the Town Hall. For further information please contact 
Democratic Services, email: democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk, telephone: 01372 
732000.
Information about the terms of reference and membership of this Committee are available 
on the Council’s website. The website also provides copies of agendas, reports and 
minutes.
Agendas, reports and minutes for the Committee are also available on the free 
Modern.Gov app for iPad, Android and Windows devices. For further information on how 
to access information regarding this Committee, please email us at 
Democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk.

Exclusion of the Press and the Public 
There are no matters scheduled to be discussed at this meeting that would appear to 
disclose confidential or exempt information under the provisions Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985. Should any such matters arise during 
the course of discussion of the below items or should the Chairman agree to discuss any 
other such matters on the grounds of urgency, the Committee will wish to resolve to 
exclude the press and public by virtue of the private nature of the business to be 
transacted.

Questions from the Public
Questions from the public are not permitted at meetings of the Standards Committee. Part 
4 of the Council’s Constitution sets out which Committees are able to receive public 
questions, and the procedure for doing so. 

mailto:democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
mailto:Democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=205&info=1&MD=Constitution
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=205&info=1&MD=Constitution


AGENDA

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

Members are asked to declare the existence and nature of any Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests in respect of any item of business to be considered at the 
meeting.

2. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  (Pages 5 - 8)

The Committee is asked to confirm as a true record the Minutes of the Meeting 
of the Committee held on 18 January 2021 (attached) and to authorise the 
Chairman to sign them.

3. CONSTITUTION UPDATE:  PLANNING CODE OF PRACTICE  (Pages 9 - 38)

To update the draft Planning Code of Practice.

4. COMMITTEE WORK PLAN 2021-2022  (Pages 39 - 46)

To agree a Committee Work Plan for the Municipal Year 2021-2022.



This page is intentionally left blank



4

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council

Minutes of the Meeting of the STANDARDS COMMITTEE held on 18 January 2021

PRESENT -

Councillor Liz Frost (Chairman); Councillor Hannah Dalton (Vice-Chair); Councillors 
Kate Chinn, Robert Foote, Luke Giles, Eber Kington, David Reeve, Guy Robbins 
(Present for Items 4-5 only)) and Peter Webb

Officers present: Amardip Healy (Chief Legal Officer), Tim Richardson (Committee 
Administrator) and Sarah Keeble (Democratic Services Officer)

6 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were made in relation to items on the agenda.

7 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

The Minutes of the previous Meeting of the Standards Committee held on 3 April 
2019 and the Minutes of the Special Meeting of the Committee held on 19 
November 2019 were agreed as a true record and the Committee authorised the 
Chairman to sign them.

8 REVIEW OF CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINTS 

The Committee received a report providing an update on complaints made under 
the Code of Conduct for Members from 1st February 2018 to 31st December 
2020 and the steps taken to both promote and maintain high standards of 
conduct by Members.

The Committee received a verbal introduction from the Chief Legal Officer.

The following matters were raised by the Committee:

a) Key Performance Indicators: Following a question from a Member, the 
Officer confirmed that Key Performance Indicators can be incorporated 
into the Appendix, to detail dates of complaints coming in, as well as the 
start and completion dates for any investigations that may take place.

b) Annual report: Members noted the next date for this report to return to 
the Committee, and spoke about the possibility of an additional 
recommendation being added so that this occurs annually as standard.

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



Meeting of the Standards Committee, 18 January 2021 5

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council

An additional recommendation was proposed by Councillor David Reeve, and 
seconded by Councillor Rob Foote. This recommendation was to read:

(3) To agree that the Report of Complaints will be brought annually to the 
Standards Committee from the first Meeting after Annual Council.

Following consideration, it was resolved unanimously that the Committee:

(1) Agreed to note the complaints from the 1st February 2018 to the 31 
December 2020;

(2) Agreed to note the actions taken to promote and maintain high 
standards of Conduct by Members;

(3) Agreed that the Report of Complaints will be brought annually to the 
Standards Committee from the first Meeting after Annual Council.

9 UPDATE ON CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS 

The Committee received a report providing an update on the work to promote 
and maintain high standards of conduct by Members and also to consider a 
response to the Committee on Standards in Public Life to their open letter.

The Committee received an introduction from the Chief Legal Officer.

The following matters were raised by the Committee:

a) Language: Members noted a number of discrepancies throughout the 
LGA Code of Conduct, including areas where more clarity could be 
sought. The Officer noted that comments regarding changes or 
amendments could be collected and considered at a future meeting of 
the Standards Committee.

An additional recommendation was proposed by Councillor Eber Kington, and 
seconded by Councillor Guy Robbins. This was to read:

(3) To agree that Members would send comments on the draft LGA Code 
of Conduct to the Monitoring Officer; to be brought as a report to the 
Committee at a future Standards meeting.

Following consideration, it was resolved unanimously that the Committee:

(1) Agreed to note the actions taken to promote and maintain high 
standards of Conduct by Members;

(2) Considered a response to the ethical standards letter from the 
Committee on Standards in Public Life and delegate to the Monitoring 
Officer after consultation with the Chairman, to respond.

Page 6

Agenda Item 2



Meeting of the Standards Committee, 18 January 2021 6

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council

Following consideration, it was resolved with 7 Members voting for, 1 Member 
voting against and the Chairman not voting that the Committee:

(3) Agreed that Members would send comments on the draft LGA Code of 
Conduct to the Monitoring Officer; to be brought as a report to the 
Committee at a future Standards meeting.

10 STANDING ORDERS ON PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

The Committee received a report detailing a review of what public participation 
should look like for the future in terms of Council and Committee Meetings.

The Committee received a verbal introduction from the Chief Legal Officer.

The following matters were raised by the Committee:

a) Wording of Recommendation: Members raised concerns regarding the 
lack of clarity surrounding the wording of Recommendation 1A. It was 
noted that any discrepancies with its intended meaning may be clarified 
with some additional wording as suggested by the Officer.

An amendment to Recommendation 1A was proposed by Councillor Eber 
Kington, and seconded by Councillor Hannah Dalton. This was to read:

(a) Not to change Standing Order CPR1.1 in line with the reasons set 
out within paragraph 2.10 of the report;

This amendment was agreed unanimously. 

An amendment to Recommendation 4 was proposed by the Monitoring Officer. 
This was to read:

(4) Agreed the Committee’s Working Group be set up and to extend 
an invitation to all Members in seeking a further nomination for 
a Member of the Standards Committee who falls within the 
skillset as set out in paragraph 2B and one other Member.

This amendment was agreed unanimously.

Following consideration, it was resolved unanimously that the Committee:

(1) Agreed to note the recommendation of the Committee’s Working 
Group:

(a)  Not to change Standing Order CPR1.1 in line with the 
reasons set out within paragraph 2.10 of the report;

(b)  To recommend a review of the role of public participation 
within the Council’s Standing Orders;

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



Meeting of the Standards Committee, 18 January 2021 7

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council

(c)  To consider how public participation within the Standing 
Orders processes can be made more accessible and 
inclusive.

(2) Agreed for a Working Group to be set up to carry out a review of 
public participation Standing Orders and to make recommendations 
on any changes;

(3) Agreed the terms of reference for the Working Group, set out at 
Appendix 1;

(4) Agreed the Committee’s Working Group be set up and to extend an 
invitation to all Members in seeking a further nomination for a Member 
of the Standards Committee who falls within the skillset as set out in 
paragraph 2B and one other Member.

The meeting began at 7.00 pm and ended at 8.43 pm

COUNCILLOR LIZ FROST (CHAIRMAN)

Page 8

Agenda Item 2



Standards Committee
16 June 2021

CONSTITUTION UPDATE:  PLANNING CODE OF PRACTICE

Head of Service: Amardip Healy, Chief Legal Officer
Wards affected: (All Wards);
Urgent Decision?(yes/no) No
If yes, reason urgent decision 
required:
Appendices (attached): 1: draft Planning Code of Practice 

Summary

To update the draft Planning Code of Practice.

Recommendation (s)
The Committee is asked to:

(1) consider the amended draft Planning Code of Practice;

(2) approve the circulation of the amended draft Planning Code of Practice to all 
Members of Council for comment;

(3) to delegate to the Chief Legal Officer following consultation with the 
Committee’s Chair and Vice Chair the approval of any necessary changes to 
the draft Planning Code of Practice following Member comments;

(4) recommend to Council the adoption of the approved Planning Code of 
Practice;

(5) note that the draft Planning Code of Practice may be bought back to 
Standards Committee before its recommendation to Council.  

1 Reason for Recommendation

1.1 Review of Part 5 of the Constitution is continuing with the draft Planning 
Code of Practice being the next document which requires updating.  

2 Background

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



Standards Committee
16 June 2021

2.1 In November 2017, Planning Committee agreed to a Planning 
Improvement Action Plan. The Plan contained a number of actions to 
implement changes to practices and procedures, with one action to 
update the planning Code of Conduct. A new Code was introduced 
following approval by Council in February 2018.  The Code was required 
to be reviewed after six months of operation.  

2.2 Following a number of changes within the Planning Service, the review of 
the Code was delayed. 

2.3 In November 2019, the Committee considered a new draft Planning Code 
of Practice. This followed a period where a number of changes to the 
Constitution had taken place, which included a new Code of Conduct for 
Members (April 2019) and a Protocol for Managing Member/Officer 
Relations (July 2018). Taken together, any revision of the Planning Code 
of Practice no longer required a repetition of matters which sat with the 
wider ethical framework documents.

2.4 The new draft Planning Code was a wholly new document.  The focus of 
the document set out clear processes and procedures for Planning 
Committee and how the Committee operated at its meetings. Members of 
Planning Committee were invited to the Standards Committee to ensure 
an informed discussion on the proposed new Code.  

2.5 The draft Code then proceeded to Council in January 2020, where it was 
not approved.  The issues raised at Council were:

2.5.1 Remove the following words from guidance note to para 3.7 “Note 
to Members: Members should take great care to ensure that they 
have declared if they have been approached by any party during 
the ‘declaration of interests’ item”.  Members voted in favour of the 
removal of this note.

2.5.2 A number of concerns were raised about the proposed changes to 
public speaking arrangements.  Concerns that the proposed 
registration period might not be accessible to some interested 
parties, and that greater flexibility might be required for large 
applications. It was explained at the Meeting that the registration 
requirements were designed to be broader than those which 
currently existed, and that the number of speakers who were able 
to speak in objection were proposed to be increased from 1 to 2. 

2.6 Since Council has already voted on the issue set out at para 2.5.1, the 
note has been removed from the draft code.  It is however, important to 
note that the practice which Planning Committee has been operating over 
the last year, is of Committee Members declaring contact from interested 
parties during the declaration of interests’ item. 

Public Speakers registration

Page 10

Agenda Item 3



Standards Committee
16 June 2021

2.7 The current Code of Practice provides as follows:

“11.3An individual or representative of a local group/organisation who 
wishes to speak at a Planning Committee must register their wish to do so 
between 6pm and 7pm on the evening of the meeting at the Town Hall 
reception desk.

11.4 Normally, in addition to the applicant/agent, only one member of the 
public may speak for or against a single application.  Registration will 
normally be on a first come first served basis but an individual may 
choose to waive this right in favour of an individual who attempted to 
register at a later time.  Alternatively, several members of the public may 
appoint one person to speak on their behalf provided they can reach 
agreement to this amongst themselves.”

2.8 The process resulted in numerous issues and complaints and did not work 
well either for those wishing to speak nor those trying to administer the 
process.  

2020 proposed changes to public speaker registration 

2.9 The new Code proposed an entirely new process, so as to address the 
issues of the old.  The new proposed requirements were set out at para 8 
of the Guidance on Committee Procedure. Namely:

PUBLIC SPEAKING 
8.1    Although members of the public have no legal right to speak at Planning 

Committee meetings, the Council recognises the value of representations 
on planning matters. Therefore the Council has adopted a protocol which 
encourages public participation, by allowing those wishing to address the 
Planning Committee to be able to do so. The rights set out below are those 
that apply. 

Speakers 
8.2    Up to 2 speakers who wish to object, and up to 2 who wish to support 

(which includes the agent/ applicant) may make oral representations, with 
3 minutes allowed per speaker. The following procedure will apply: 
•       Planning officers will give, to the applicant and those that have 

lodged a consultation response, at least 5 clear working days’ notice 
of the date of the Committee meeting; 

•      The agenda and reports for the meeting and relevant plans are 
published on the Council's website at least five clear working days 
before the meeting; 

•      Speakers must register their wish to speak with Democratic Services 
between 9am and noon on the day of Committee. Contact details are 
contained on the front sheet of the agenda, and are: 

 Tel: 01372-732121 
democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk 

• Only one speaker per household or organisation will be allowed; 
• The speaking slots will be filled on a first come, first serve basis (large 

groups may be required to nominate a lead speaker or need to be 

Page 11

Agenda Item 3



Standards Committee
16 June 2021

represented by a Ward Member to ensure a fair balance of speakers – 
see 8.4 below); 

• If no advance notice of those wishing to speak in accordance with this 
Code, is given, there is no right to address the Committee; 

 Public speakers have no right of reply, and cannot engage in any 
debate. 

2.10 Therefore the substantive change was registration to speak from the 
morning of a meeting, rather than the evening of a meeting. The change 
meant that someone who wanted to speak no longer needed to attend the 
Town Hall in person between 6 pm and 7pm to register to speak. 

Remote meetings practice for public speakers

2.11 During the period of remote meetings, the registration process for 
speakers had to change.  It was no longer possible for in person 
registration to take place. The process which was put in place required:

2.11.1notice to speak to happen a few days before the Committee 
meeting – this allowed for support to be given to speakers with the 
remote meeting platform

2.11.2a copy of the speaker’s statement to be sent in advance of the 
meeting – this allowed a speech to be read out in the event of any 
IT failure. 

2.12 The process for those wishing to speak at remote Planning Committees 
was set out on in a dedicated section in the Committee’s Agenda papers.  
By way of example, for a meeting taking place on the 10 December 2020, 
the deadline for registration was noon 7 December 2020.  The information 
about the deadline to register is clearly stated on the Agenda. 

2.13 The example of the December 2020 Committee is as follows: 

“Public speaking

Public speaking in support or objection to planning applications is permitted at 
meetings of our Planning Committee. As this meeting of the Committee will be 
held online, you must register in advance if you wish to speak.

To register to speak at this Planning Committee meeting, please contact 
Democratic Services, email: democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk, tel: 
01372 732000 in advance of the deadline for registration, which is given below.

We will ask you to submit a written statement that can be read out at the meeting 
in the event of any technical issues during the meeting. The statement must be 
of no more than 3 minutes in length when read aloud.

If a number of people wish to speak on a particular application, public speaking 
will normally be allocated in order of registration. If you fail to submit your written 
statement, then your place may be allocated to those on the speakers waiting 

Page 12

Agenda Item 3



Standards Committee
16 June 2021

list. Further information is available by contacting Democratic Services, email: 
democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk, tel: 01372 732000.

Deadline for public speaking registration: Noon, 7 December.

https://democracy.epsom-
ewell.gov.uk/documents/g955/Agenda%20frontsheet%2010th-Dec-
2020%2019.30%20Planning%20Committee.pdf?T=0

2.14 In addition to this notice, the publication of the agenda papers was moved 
from 5 days before a meeting to 10 days before a meeting. Again this was 
designed to give early notice of agenda items. 

2.15 Since May 2020, Planning Committee has dealt with a number of 
controversial planning applications.  The meetings have recorded some of 
the highest numbers of public attendance and public speaking.  

New proposed changes to public speaker registration 

2.16 The evidence from the current operational speaker registration system, is 
that the concerns raised by some Members at Council in January 2020, 
have not materialised.  The concerns were addressed by:

2.16.1 signposting a clear system for public speaking on the Agenda 
papers;

2.16.2setting a clear deadline for registration again on the Agenda 
papers.

These have all helped to resolve Member’s fears around accessibility. 

2.17 All the systems (former and current) are based on a first come first served 
basis.  By having a clear published process and a deadline date for 
registration set out on the agenda papers, the system for managing the 
process of registration is now effective in terms of administration, fairer 
and simpler to all those who are interested in speaking.  

2.18 With a return to in person meetings, we have continued to webcast 
planning committee meetings through the remote meeting platform.  This 
has allowed those who wish to deliver their statements virtually to do so.  

2.19 Whether the Council continues with its current format of interactive 
meetings is something which will need to be fully explored as part of an 
options appraisal for replacement of the current audio equipment in the 
Chamber. However, the evidence from the last Municipal Year, where 16 
meetings instead of the yearly average of around 11 meetings, were held, 
provides clear support for the current process for registration of speaking 
continuing.   

Page 13

Agenda Item 3

https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/documents/g955/Agenda%20frontsheet%2010th-Dec-2020%2019.30%20Planning%20Committee.pdf?T=0
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/documents/g955/Agenda%20frontsheet%2010th-Dec-2020%2019.30%20Planning%20Committee.pdf?T=0
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/documents/g955/Agenda%20frontsheet%2010th-Dec-2020%2019.30%20Planning%20Committee.pdf?T=0


Standards Committee
16 June 2021

2.20 There have been 3 complaints following missed speaker registration 
opportunities over the last year.  All concern the allegations of not being 
aware of when a matter was going to Committee and not of the process 
for registration for speaking, which is open and transparent.  Under the old 
system, there were complaints or expressions of dissatisfaction in relation 
to almost every meeting.

2.21 The current practice for speaker registration works infinitely better than 
the old system, which required registration on the day of the meeting in 
the evening. It is therefore proposed that the draft Code be amended so 
as to incorporate the current public speaking registration practices, which 
have proved to be more flexible to those who may not always be able to 
register in person just before a meeting. 

Public attendance data for Planning Committees held remotely

2.22 The data from attendance at remote meetings again helps to highlight that 
not everyone is able to access evening meetings in person.  The table 
below sets out the data around remote attendance at Planning 
Committees over the last year:

Title Date Public/
Observer connections

Planning Committee 13-May-20 20

Planning Committee Meeting 18-Jun-20 15

Planning Committee Meeting 09-Jul-20 74

Planning Committee Meeting 23-Jul-20 26

Planning Committee Meeting 03-Sep-20 39
Planning Committee: Special 
Meeting 23-Sep-20 39

Planning Committee Meeting 08-Oct-20 85

Planning Committee Meeting 05-Nov-20 15

Planning Committee Meeting 18-Nov-20 119

Planning Committee Meeting 10-Dec-20 8

Planning Committee Meeting 14-Jan-21 18
Planning Committee: Special 
Meeting 18-Feb-21 26

Planning Committee Meeting 01-Apr-21 8

Planning Committee Meeting 22-Apr-21 116

Planning Committee Meeting 27-Apr-21 27
Planning Committee: Special 
Meeting 12-May-21 84

Page 14

Agenda Item 3



Standards Committee
16 June 2021

2.23 The meeting on the 12 May 2021 was an in person meeting, but one 
which was also made available live remotely. At that meeting 2 people 
attended in person, 84 watched it remotely. 

2.24 The capacity of the public gallery is 42 (with the Covid restrictions, this is 
now 8).  It was rare to have a full public gallery at meetings of Planning 
Committee. However, the pressure on seating occurred when contentious 
applications were being heard. 

2.25 How the public are advised of when an item of interest is coming before a 
Planning Committee is a matter which needs attention.  It has been and 
remains the source of the highest reasons for public dissatisfaction with 
the Council’s planning processes.  However, the role of the Planning 
Code is not to address what happens as part of a planning process.  The 
focus of the Code is the conduct and arrangements of the meeting of 
Planning Committee only.  The Code is a living document and will need to 
flex and change as needed. 

Other Changes 

Publication of agenda papers 

2.26 In line with the practice over the last year, it proposed that agendas be 
published 10 clear working days before a meeting. The legal requirement 
is 5 days. However, to allow the public enough time to consider an 
officer’s report and then to consider whether they wish to speak, 10 days 
is considered as good practice. 

2.27 Some additional words have been added to the Code to highlight to the 
public when agendas are published.  The public information on the 
Council’s website will also be improved to signpost how to check if any 
application is on an agenda and what to do if someone wishes to speak 
on an item.

Speakers to present remotely

2.28 To enable the possibility for hybrid meetings and for speakers to present 
remotely, some additional paragraphs have been added at Part 2, para 
8.2. This includes the submission of a written copy of the speech and it 
also confirms that copies of speeches will not be passed on to planning 
officers before the Committee Meeting. 

Ward Members

2.29 The proposed Code provided for those Wards Members of an adjoining to 
or on the boundary of where a development was being proposed, would 
have the ability to call in an application, if the call in criteria were met (see 
Part 1: para 9).

Page 15

Agenda Item 3



Standards Committee
16 June 2021

2.30 As a result, para 8.4 of Part 2 has been updated to clarify that such a 
Ward Member (whose ward is adjoining or on the boundary of the ward 
with the development) can also speak at Planning Committee.  There is 
no limited on the number of Ward Members who can speak provide they 
fall within those categories.

Part heard and adjourned

2.31 A further amendment has been made to Part 2, para 8.6 to clarify a ‘part 
heard’ application which is ‘adjourned’. This is to make it clear what 
speaking rights carry forward.

Probity in planning

2.32 In December 2019, the Local Government Association (LGA) and the 
Planning Advisory Service (PAS) published an updated “Probity in 
planning” advice note to Councillors and Officers involved in making 
planning decisions. A link to the document is included at the end of this 
report. 

2.33 At present it is not felt any further changes need to be recommended as a 
result of the LGA advice note.

Next Steps

2.34 To ensure wider engagement on the amended draft Code, the 
recommendation is to consult all Members for their views on the updated 
draft.  This would include a workshop as well as a survey. 

2.35 The comments and suggestions will be collected and considered by the 
Chief Legal Officer in consultation with Standard Committee’s Chair and 
Vice Chair. In the event any feel that the suggestions or comments are of 
such a material nature, where they need to go before a Standards 
Committee, then a special Standards Committee will be called. Hence the 
inclusion of recommendation 4.  However, if the matters raised can be 
addressed or responded to without the need for material changes, then a 
report will proceed to Council for approval of any updated Code. 

3 Risk Assessment

Legal or other duties

3.1 Impact Assessment

3.1.1 none arising from the contents of this report.

3.2 Crime & Disorder

3.2.1 none arising from the contents of this report.

Page 16

Agenda Item 3



Standards Committee
16 June 2021

3.3 Safeguarding

3.3.1 none arising from the contents of this report.

3.4 Dependencies

3.4.1 none arising from the contents of this report.

3.5 Other

3.5.1 none arising from the contents of this report.

4 Financial Implications

4.1 None arising from the contents of this report.

4.2 Section 151 Officer’s comments: none arising from the contents of this 
report.

5 Legal Implications

5.1 It is important for the Council to keep under review the Planning Code of 
Practice.  Regular reviews help to keep pace with changes in good 
practice and ensures risks are mitigated. The Code is principally directed 
to the conduct of processes at Planning Committee, to ensure they are 
transparent to all.  

5.2 Monitoring Officer’s comments: none arising from the contents of this 
report.

6 Policies, Plans & Partnerships

6.1 Council’s Key Priorities: The following Key Priorities are engaged: 
Effective Council.

6.2 Service Plans: The matter is included within the current Service Delivery 
Plan.

6.3 Climate & Environmental Impact of recommendations: none arising 
from the contents of this report. 

6.4 Sustainability Policy & Community Safety Implications:  none arising 
from the contents of this report. 

6.5 Partnerships: none arising from the contents of this report. 

7 Background papers

7.1 The documents referred to in compiling this report are as follows:

Previous reports:

Page 17

Agenda Item 3



Standards Committee
16 June 2021

 Constitution Update – Revisions to Part 5: Section 8 Planning Code 
of Practice, Standards Committee 19 November 2019

https://democracy.epsom-
ewell.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=151&MId=899

 Constitution Update – Revisions to Part 5: Section 8 Planning Code 
of Practice, Council  20 January 2020

https://democracy.epsom-
ewell.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=146&MId=897&Ver=4

Other papers:

 Revision to Constitution – Model Code of Practice for members in 
respect of Planning Matters, Council 20 February 2018

https://democracy.epsom-
ewell.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=146&MId=401

 Probity in planning  - Advice to councillors and officers making 
planning decisions. LGA & PAS.  December 2019 

https://www.local.gov.uk/probity-planning-advice-councillors-and-
officers-making-planning-decisions

Page 18

Agenda Item 3

https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=151&MId=899
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=151&MId=899
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=146&MId=897&Ver=4
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=146&MId=897&Ver=4
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=146&MId=401
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=146&MId=401
https://www.local.gov.uk/probity-planning-advice-councillors-and-officers-making-planning-decisions
https://www.local.gov.uk/probity-planning-advice-councillors-and-officers-making-planning-decisions


Section 8 - Planning Code of Practice
Incorporated into the Constitution in December 2007; Revised January 2018; revised 

Introduction

Planning decisions affect the homes and livelihoods of residents, businesses and other 
stakeholders, as well as impacting on the environment itself.  They can be important and 
controversial and those affected by a planning decision can and should expect high 
standards of probity from the Council and a fair and accountable decision-making process.

This Code provides guidance to assist Members and Officers on how to ensure these 
standards are met.  In doing so, it supplements the Members’ Code of Conduct.  This 
Planning Code of Practice applies to all Members when they are involved in the planning 
process.

The Code is divided into 2 parts: 

• Part 1 :Guidance on conduct and decision-making issues in planning matters; and 

• Part 2: Guidance on Planning Committee procedure. 

For ease of reference, all references to Councillor and Member will refer to an elected 
member of the Epsom & Ewell Borough Council.  Unless the context of the advice refers to 
the wider Council Members, the reference shall be to those who sit on or as substitutes on 
Planning Committee.  References to the Council will, as the context so requires, refer to the 
Council’s role as the Local Planning Authority.

Advice on this Code is always available from the Council’s Monitoring Officer.

Page 19

Agenda Item 3
Appendix 1



2 | P a g e

Part 1: Guidance on conduct and 
decision-making issues in planning 
matters
1 Conduct

The Code of Conduct for Members 

1.1 The Code of Conduct for Members in Part 5 of the Council’s Constitution imposes 
standards of conduct upon all Councillors.  These standards are important within the 
context of when Members are involved in making decisions but also when they wish 
to raise matters on behalf of their constituents.   The Code of Conduct for Members 
therefore sits alongside this Planning Code of Practice.

1.2 The key provisions that arise in the planning field are: 

• To act solely in the public interest and never improperly to confer an advantage or 
disadvantage on any person or improperly act to gain financial or other material 
benefits for themselves, their family, friends or close associates; 

• Declaring and registering interests; 

• Making decisions free from bias and where the outcome is not pre-determined; 

• Declaring gifts and hospitality. 

1.3 Although the Code of Conduct for Members is the key document, for easy assistance, 
a short note on each of these provisions is set out below.

Declaring Interests 

1.4 Members must declare any interests in a planning decision to ensure the Member’s 
private interests do not interfere, and are not perceived as interfering, with their public 
duties.  The nature of the interest must also be declared save where it is a ‘sensitive 
interest’ as defined by section 32 of the Localism Act 2011. 

Pecuniary Interests 
What is a pecuniary interest? 

1.5 A disclosable pecuniary interest is any interest prescribed as such by regulations 
issued by the Secretary of State (currently the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012, the “Regulations”) and 

a) it is either the interest of the Member; or 
b) is the interest of their spouse or civil partner; a person with whom the Member 

lives as husband or wife; or a person with whom the Member lives with as if 
they were a civil partner; and 

Page 20

Agenda Item 3
Appendix 1



3 | P a g e

c) the Member is aware that the other person in (b) has the interest. 

When must pecuniary interests be declared? 
1.6 A Member should: 

• Disclose the interest at the start of the meeting when asked by the 
Chairman/Chair or, at the latest, when the Member becomes aware that an item 
relates to the pecuniary interest; and 

• Withdraw from the meeting room for the relevant item, and 
• Not participate or participate further in any discussion and / or vote on the matter 

at the meeting. 

Non-pecuniary Interests 
What is a non-pecuniary interest? 

1.7 Non-pecuniary interests can include: 
• Appointments made by the Council to any outside bodies (excluding joint 

committees with other local authorities); 
• Membership of charities;  
• Membership of lobbying or campaign groups; 
• Governorships at any educational institution in the Borough; and 
• Membership of voluntary organisations operating in the Borough.

Note to Members: please remember that you must declare the interests of your spouse or civil 
partner, or person with whom you are living as if a spouse or civil partner. However, if you are 
unaware of another person’s interest or it is reasonable for you not to be aware of the interest, you 
will not be in breach of the Code by failing to declare it. 

When must non-pecuniary interests be declared?
1.8 A member with a non-pecuniary interest must declare the interest at the start of the 

meeting or when it becomes apparent.  The member may remain in the meeting and 
may participate in the matter and vote upon it. 

1.9 The member should take into account guidance set out in the Code of Conduct for 
Members (Section 3) on predetermination and bias with regard to participation in 
meetings and seek advice from the Monitoring Officer where appropriate. 

Abuse of Position 
1.10 Planning decisions often have a significant effect on residents and other 

stakeholders.  Members must serve the whole community when making planning 
decisions; they must consciously not use their vote to advantage or disadvantage 
an individual or business.  This includes using a vote to favour themselves, a 
relative, friend or constituent; or to be overly influenced by a lobbying group.  It also 

Page 21

Agenda Item 3
Appendix 1



4 | P a g e

includes doing something that adversely affects somebody or a group that a 
Member dislikes or opposes. 

Examples: 
*Advancing your own or a friend’s or relative’s planning application. 
*Requesting that planning committee consider an application that you, a relative or friend opposes. 
*Using visiting speaking rights to advance your interests or those of a friend or relative or oppose the 
interests of an adversary. 

Note to Members:  There is considerable crossover with the duty to declare interests and seeking to 
obtain an improper advantage – in each of the cases above the Member risks apparent bias, which 
could leave the decision open to challenge. 

1.11 This rule only affects improper actions.  It is perfectly proper for Members to consider 
legitimate constituency and lobbying interests, so long as the final decision in a 
meeting is based on an open consideration of all issues and proper planning reasons. 

Declaring Gifts and Hospitality 

1.12 Members should also be very cautious about accepting gifts and hospitality, 
particularly from developers.  Members should bear in mind the public perception of 
the receipt of any gifts, although at times some limited hospitality is unavoidable.

1.13 Members are required to register the receipt of gifts and hospitality over the value of 
£100 (Code of Conduct for Members, Section 5) and the identity of the donor, and to 
declare these details at the meeting where they relate to the business to be 
conducted.

2 DECISION MAKING 
2.1 Generally, planning applications must be determined in accordance with the 

development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  It is important 
to note that if the development plan is not up to date, or if an up to date National 
Planning Policy Framework sets out requirements which conflict with a development 
plan, then elements of parts of the development plan may have been superseded.  
Decision making in such instances will need to carefully consider the wider policy 
context along with any material considerations.  All references in this Protocol shall 
be read accordingly.

2.2 Any issue relating to the use and development of land is capable of being a material 
consideration.

Page 22

Agenda Item 3
Appendix 1



5 | P a g e

2.3 When considering development proposals, the Council will take a positive approach 
that reflects the presumption in favour of sustainable development contained in the 
National Planning Policy Framework. It will always work proactively with applicants 
jointly to find solutions which mean that proposals can be approved wherever 
possible, and to secure development that improves the economic, social and 
environmental conditions in the area. 

2.4 Planning applications that accord with the policies in the Development Plan suite of 
documents will be approved without delay, unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise. 

2.5 Where there are no policies relevant to the application or relevant policies are out of 
date at the time of making the decision then the Council will grant permission unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise – taking into account whether: 

2.5.1 Any adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and 
demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the 
National Planning Policy Framework taken as a whole; or 

2.5.2 Specific policies in the Framework that indicate development should be 
restricted.  

2.6 Reasons must be given for either the grant or a refusal of a planning permission in 
accordance with Development Management Procedures.

2.7 The reasons to be given, where permission is refused or conditions imposed must: 

(1) be stated clearly and precisely; 

(2) be relevant and full; 

(3) specify all policies and proposals in the development plan which are relevant to 
the decision; and 

(4) give details of any direction given, or opposing view expressed, by the Secretary 
of State or a Government Department. 

2.8 If Members intend to make a decision contrary to the officer’s recommendation, it is 
particularly important to ensure that Members are clear about the reasons for their 
decision before voting.  Members are strongly advised to seek Officers’ advice in 
these cases and may wish to defer the matter until advice has been sought.  Any 
deferral period will need to be mindful of the requirements to determine an application 
within a regulatory timetable. 

Predetermination and Bias 

2.9 Those applying for planning permission, or objecting to a development, can expect 
that Planning Committee members will be unbiased and will not pre-determine the 
application.  The appearance of predetermination or bias on behalf of any Member 
who takes part in the discussion and/or votes may result in the validity of any decision 

Page 23

Agenda Item 3
Appendix 1



6 | P a g e

taken on the matter being challenged through the courts.  The courts have repeatedly 
quashed planning decisions where Members are held to have pre-determined the 
decision, irrespective of the fact they did not stand to gain financially or otherwise 
from the decision.

2.10 Pre-determination is a form of bias.  It means that a Member has made up their mind 
on a planning application before hearing the evidence.  It is perfectly permissible for 
a Member to have a strong view on an application; this is known as predisposition.  
Predisposition is lawful.  The key issue is that the member ensures that their 
predisposition does not prevent them from consideration of all the other factors that 
are relevant to a decision, such as committee reports, supporting documents and the 
views of those making representations.  In other words, the Member retains an “open 
mind”.

2.11 Section 25 of the Localism Act 2011 confirms this position by providing that a decision 
will not be unlawful because of an allegation of bias or pre-determination “just 
because” a Member has done something that would indicate what view they may take 
in relation to a matter relevant to a decision.  However, if a Member has done 
something more than indicate a view on a decision, this may be unlawful bias or 
predetermination.

2.12 Members who also sit on other Council Committees, that have discussed and formed 
a view on a planning matter, should always seek advice on whether they may have 
pre-determined the matter. 

2.13 Members who consider they may have predetermined an application should seek 
advice from the Monitoring Officer. They should declare any predetermination in the 
meeting and not take part in the relevant item(s).

2.14 Bias is also unlawful and can arise from a member’s relationships or interests, as well 
as their state of mind.  The legal test is: “whether the fair minded and informed 
observer, having considered the facts, would conclude that there was a real 
possibility that the tribunal was biased’.  A fair-minded observer takes an objective 
and balanced view of the situation but Members who think that they have a 
relationship or interest that may raise a possibility of bias, should seek legal advice. 
Members should declare such an interest in the meeting and not take part in the 
relevant item(s).

2.15 Members should have in mind the advice in this Code at all times, including when 
attending Council briefings by Developers.  When attending such presentations, it is 
vital that Members restrict themselves to factual questions and do not indicate a view 
on the development. 

Examples: 
* “I think the design is rubbish and there is no way I will be voting for it”. 
* “My residents hate the scheme, so I will be refusing it”. 

Page 24

Agenda Item 3
Appendix 1



7 | P a g e

* “I have committed to opposing any scheme which has flats”. 
Note to members:  Members should take great care when expressing an opinion which may be taken 
to indicate that have already made up their mind on a matter before they have considered the 
application and the arguments for and against a particular scheme. 

3 LOBBYING 

3.1 Those who may be affected by a decision on a planning application – applicants, 
developers, objectors, other councillors and pressure groups - will often seek to 
influence its outcome through the lobbying of their elected ward councillors or 
Planning Committee Members.  Lobbying is a normal and legitimate part of the 
process, but unless all the parties concerned exercise care, it can lead to Members’ 
impartiality and integrity being called into question.

How to Deal with Lobbying  
3.2 Members must keep their minds open when considering a planning application.  The 

intention of lobbying is to try to make a Member vote in a particular way on a decision.  
In dealing with lobbying, Members can listen to the views of their constituents and 
other stakeholders.  However, they should refrain from expressing any opinion or 
view.  Members must retain their independent judgement and serve the community 
as a whole when sitting on the Planning Committee.

3.3 This can at times prove difficult, because emotions and feelings often run high. If 
faced with such a situation: 

• Members should tell lobbyists politely that, as they sit on the Planning Committee, 
they cannot express any views on an application’s merits before the meeting or 
agree to vote in a particular way;

• Members can listen to what lobbyists have to say but then should direct them to 
the relevant Planning Officers and provide advice on how to contact Officers;

• Written representations and petitions should be directed to, or forwarded to, the 
relevant planning Officers;

• Members should not enter into a debate on the merits of the application, as this 
may lead to comments being misinterpreted;

• Lobbied Members should seek advice if they consider it may affect their ability to 
determine an application fairly;

• Members should declare any lobbying at the relevant planning meeting.

These requirements also apply to local ward meetings, when the merits of specific 
developments are discussed.  Planning Committee Members should explain that they 
cannot participate in the discussion if they intend to sit on the Planning Committee 
when any subsequent application is to be determined. 

Membership of Lobby Groups 

Page 25

Agenda Item 3
Appendix 1



8 | P a g e

3.4 Lobbying can lead to impartiality and ultimately the integrity of a councillor being 
called into question.  Therefore, those Members who wish to be on lobby groups need 
to consider very carefully whether this is compatible with any role as a member on 
Planning Committee. 

3.5 Members involved in planning decisions should take care when joining and being 
active in lobby groups.  When considering whether membership of a lobby group 
could create the perception of bias or pre-determination of the matter, Members 
should consider the following factors: 

• The nature of the matter being discussed; 

• The nature of your involvement in the group; 

• The publicly expressed views of the lobbying group; 

• What the Member has said or done in relation to the particular issue. 

3.6 Membership and involvement in a lobby group – particularly a leading role in a 
campaign – can give rise to the risk of predetermination. Members are encouraged 
to seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer before participating in planning decisions 
where membership of a lobby group is relevant.

Examples: 
* Members can be lobbied by objectors, supporters or developers of a scheme. 
* Belonging to an action group is likely to be seen as a lobby group
* Any Members of Planning Committee, speaking as ordinary Members at a meeting on an item, 
where they are addressing Planning Committee on behalf of a lobby group, once they have spoken, 
must withdraw from the room for that item. 

Note to members:  Members should take great care to ensure they have declared if they have been 
approached by any party during the declaration of interests’ item. 

The Party Whip & Lobbying by Councillors

3.7 Political party whipping can be seen as a form of lobbying and is inappropriate in 
Planning Committee meetings.  Lobbying by councillors should be dealt with in the 
same way as other lobbying. 

Pre-application Discussions

3.8 Pre-application discussions are a normal part of the planning process and can be of 
considerable benefit to both parties.

Page 26

Agenda Item 3
Appendix 1



9 | P a g e

3.9 If Members are involved, such discussions can become, or be seen (especially by 
objectors) to become, part of a lobbying process.  Pre-application discussions should 
therefore be left to Officers.  If Planning Committee Members are involved in pre-
application discussions, the following principles should apply: 

• Involvement must only be in meetings arranged by Officers and an officer must 
be present at all times; 

• Officers will inform the developer in writing of the purpose of the meeting and the 
principles set out in this section and will confirm the outcome of the meeting in 
writing afterwards; 

• Members should avoid any contact, whether in person or not, with the applicants 
or the agents outside these meetings; 

• Members must not express an opinion on the application or involve themselves in 
any negotiations on the development that could suggest they have predetermined 
the application; 

• Members must not attend meetings with a Developer after an application is 
lodged, unless organised and attended by the Officers.  This includes any public 
exhibitions relating to an application which has been lodged with the Council; 

• Members must declare their attendance at any such pre-application meetings and 
any other meetings involving the Developer, at the subsequent consideration of 
the application.

4 PLANNING APPLICATIONS BY THE COUNCIL, COUNCILLORS  & 
OFFICERS 

4.1 It is perfectly legitimate that the Council, acting as the Local Planning Authority, will 
have to determine its own planning applications, and those of Members and Officers.  
The Council needs to take additional care with such applications and the public 
perception of how such applications are handled is crucial to the Planning 
Committee’s credibility as an impartial decision-making body.  The following 
principles will be followed: 

• Proposals for the Council's own development that include the erection of any 
building or a material change of use will be determined by the Planning 
Committee; 

• Minor changes to a granted consent or an uncontested application, can be 
delegated to Officers to determine under Officers Scheme of Delegation;

• Officers who submit an application in respect of a planning matter will take no part 
in its processing or determination and shall not seek to influence it improperly; 

• Officers who act as a decision maker or as agents for the Council in pursuing a 
planning matter will take no part in its processing or the decision-making process 
and shall not seek to influence it improperly; 

Page 27

Agenda Item 3
Appendix 1



10 | P a g e

• All applications made by Members and Officers or on their behalf (including Lawful 
Development Certificate applications) will be determined at Planning Committee; 

• Members who sit on other Committees should take care when participating in 
planning decisions relating to a matter which they may have already determined, 
as they may be viewed as having pre-determined the application in their other 
role; 

• Members who are close friends or relatives of other councillors making planning 
applications are likely to have the potential for apparent bias and/or 
predetermination and should seek advice before participating in the decision-
making process; 

• There is no bar on Members determining applications of councillors who are in the 
same political group so long as they are not close friends, business associates 
and/or relatives, or have not pre-determined the application. 

5 MEMBER BRIEFINGS 
5.1 For large or complex applications it might be appropriate to hold a briefing for 

Members where an applicant explains their application.  This may occur either 
before the application is submitted or before it is determined by the Planning 
Committee.  Members’ briefings will be open to all Members (not just those on the 
Planning Committee) and will be used by the applicant to provide information only.  
All such briefings will be organised by Council Officers. 

5.2 Such briefings are not part of and do not substitute for any part of the decision-
making exercise to be undertaken by the Planning Committee. 

5.3 At a briefing, Members must not express an opinion on the merits of a proposal or 
involve themselves in any negotiations on the development. The questions which 
Members can ask must be   of a factual nature  only.

6 SITE VISITS 

6.1 Although some Members may have personal knowledge of a particular application 
site, organised site visits are nonetheless a useful means of putting an application 
into its physical and environmental context.  There are two main circumstances where 
Members may need to undertake site visits: 

• A formal visit of the Committee organised by Officers; 
• Informal visits before a Committee meeting by individual Members who cannot 

attend the formal visit. 

Formal Site Visits  

Page 28

Agenda Item 3
Appendix 1



11 | P a g e

6.2 Officers may recommend, or Members of the Committee may request, a formal site 
visit.  Any recommendations for site visits must be sent to the Head of Service for 
Planning.  Site visits to larger, complex or controversial sites will be arranged for 
Members of Planning Committee shortly before the Committee meeting.  At these 
site visits, Officers will accompany Planning Committee Members to selected sites, 
explain the nature of the development proposed and point out any features that 
Members should consider when determining the application.

6.3 The purpose of the site visit is to enable Planning Committee Members to inspect the 
site and to better understand the impact of the development.  The following procedure 
should be followed: 

• Visits will not be publicised save to obtain permission to enter private land; 
• The applicants, objectors or any other parties interested in the application will not 

be allowed to accompany Planning Committee Members and Officers, except 
where attendance is necessary to allow entry, or for health and safety or other 
necessary purposes; 

• No representations should be heard and no opinion expressed and no decision 
should be made; 

• Photographs and videos (of areas not publicly accessible) may be taken only with 
consent of the owner. 

Informal Site Visits 
6.5 If a Member cannot attend the formal site visit and wishes to view the site, s/he may 

undertake an informal site visit.  The Member should follow the principles below: 

• Visits should be discreet and unaccompanied; 
• If approached, Members should explain who they are but politely refuse to 

engage in any discussion of the application; 

• Members should not go onto the application site itself if private land, to avoid 
risks of lobbying, trespass and for health and safety reasons; 

• Visits should be declared at the meeting; 
• Photographs and videos (of areas not publicly accessible) may be taken only 

with consent of the owner. 

6.6 Attendance is not compulsory, but Members who did not attend a formal or informal 
site visit should consider whether they have sufficient knowledge of the proposals to 
take part in the subsequent debate and vote and should be careful if they wish to 
raise the need for a site visit at any discussion of the Committee. 

7 MEMBER DEVELOPMENT 

Page 29

Agenda Item 3
Appendix 1



12 | P a g e

7.1 The planning system is complex and subject to change.  As a matter of good practice 
Members deciding planning applications and Members acting as substitutes on 
Planning Committee, should have an accurate and up-to-date understanding of 
planning law and procedure.  Officers will ensure there is a programme of on-going 
Members’ planning training, which covers all relevant issues.  Members are expected 
to attend as many sessions as possible and especially those covering the key issues 
or held after a major change in planning policy or law and as a part of the programme 
of continuous development.  All compulsory sessions must be attended before a 
Member sits as a decision maker on Planning Committee. 

7.2 Any Group should maintain a list of Members who have received training and only 
put forward substitutes from this list.  A Member or a substitute Member cannot sit on 
Planning Committee unless they have received the necessary compulsory training. 

8 MEMBERS ACTING IN THEIR PRIVATE CAPACITY 

8.1 Members acting in their private capacity are not entitled to call planning applications 
in and have only the same rights as any other member of the public or planning 
professional in terms of meeting with Council Officers and being able to access 
information about planning applications. 

9. MEMBER CALL-IN PROCEDURE

9.1 A Planning Committee Member or a Member representing the Ward in which 
development is proposed, or one where the development is adjacent to or on the 
boundary of a neighbouring Ward, may wish for a planning application to be 
considered by the Planning Committee.  In these circumstances, the following rules 
will apply to call in a matter, any failure to do so will allow such application to be 
determined under delegated authority:
 A “call-in” request must be received within 28 calendar days following the date 

of public notification by the Planning Service.  This gives Members enough time 
to read the comments being received from other parties (who have 21 days to 
comment);

 The request must be on the relevant form (which can be sent by email) to the 
Case Officer, copied to the Head of Planning and Planning Development 
Manager and the Chairman/Chair of the Planning Committee asking that the 
item being referred to, be “called-in” to the Planning Committee;

 The request must be on relevant planning grounds or merits intervention, to 
have the application placed before the Planning Committee.

9.2 It is not the case that just because a member of the public requests call-in of an 
application on their behalf, that this should be actioned.  It is the responsibility of 
Members to explain to their electorate that a call-in cannot be justified.

Page 30

Agenda Item 3
Appendix 1



13 | P a g e

9.3 All “call-ins” made by Members within time, stating valid material planning grounds 
and or justifying why it merits intervention or other relevant issues will be valid.

9.4 Where the “call in” is not made on material planning or merits intervention grounds, 
the “call-in” will be invalid.  The decision as to whether the grounds are justifiable will 
be the decision of the Head of Planning, in consultation with the Chairman/Chair of 
Planning Committee. 

9.5 A Member who has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest or if there is a risk of the 
Member being seen as biased, for example if the Member has a very strong 
connection through a non-pecuniary interest should not ask for an item to be called 
in. 

9.6 Members who have asked for a call-in must ensure that they attend the committee 
meeting to which the item is being discussed to explain the planning reasons why the 
application merited consideration by the Planning Committee.

Page 31

Agenda Item 3
Appendix 1



14 | P a g e

Part 2: Guidance on Committee 
Procedure 
1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 This guidance supplements the Council Procedure Rules which apply to Planning 
Committee, providing advice on specific issues that arise before and in Planning 
Committee meetings. 

2 REPORTS 
2.1 Reports on planning applications form the key evidence base for Committee 

decisions and must therefore be accurate, comprehensive and fair.  Reports must 
include  
• all relevant development plan policies and material considerations;  
• a clear recommendation with a supporting technical appraisal;  
• a summary of the reasons in support of the recommendation; and 
• details of the conditions and obligations required to be imposed. 

2.2 There is a risk that when significant material is submitted at a late stage, insufficient 
time is allowed for the Committee to read or digest it, and the public are not sufficiently 
informed. 

2.3 Update reports should be submitted only when information was not available to 
Officers before the publication deadline for the main report and which the Committee 
requires:

 to make a fair decision, 
 information requested by Members during a Committee site visit, 
 or additional conditions or informatives.  

Time will be set aside at the meeting for Members to read any update report.

3 APPLICATIONS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST 
3.1 Upon receipt of an application, the officer responsible for development management 

must consider whether the application is of such community interest that changes 
need to be made to the usual meeting arrangements. This is likely to be the case if 
there have been more than 300 representations made.  If so, s/he must arrange a 
pre-meeting with Planning Officers, Legal & Democratic Services, Town Hall Support 
and the Chairman/Chair to consider:  

• The need for a separate meeting;
• Modifications to the usual rules on public speaking; 

Page 32

Agenda Item 3
Appendix 1



15 | P a g e

• The provision of additional staff to support visitors; 
• Risk assessment. 

3.2 Any variations agreed to the Committee procedure must be included in the Agenda 
front sheet and reasonable steps must be taken by the report writer to inform the 
public and Members. 

3.3 There may be a need at late notice to vary the arrangements for a meeting in the 
event of either changes of circumstances or following a risk assessment.  Notice of 
any changes will be given as soon as possible using appropriate medium.  The 
decision of the Council will be final on any necessary late changes to the meeting’s 
arrangements. 

4 CHAIRMAN/CHAIR’S BRIEFING  
4.1 The Chairman/Chair, may hold a briefing session with Officers to review the agenda 

and go through the procedures for the meeting, to ensure effective management of 
the meeting. 

5 ORDER OF BUSINESS 
5.1 Meetings will have the following order of business: 

• Emergency evacuation procedures;
• Apologies for absence and substitutions; 
• Introduction of Officers present
• Declarations of interests under the Code of Conduct – (those with pecuniary  

interests will leave the room at the start of the appropriate item); 

• Minutes of the previous meeting; 

• Chairman/Chair’s consideration of any update reports; 

• Items where prior notice of public speakers has been given; 

• All other items in the order on which they appear on the agenda.   

5.2 The following order will be used for each agenda item, although individual items may 
not need to follow all these stages, e.g. if there are no public speakers: 

• Presentation by planning officer; 

• Up to 2 registered objectors may speak;  

• Up to 2 registered supporters may speak (including applicants or their agents); 

• Ward Members may speak if their constituents have an interest that could be 
affected directly by the matter under consideration.  Ward Members must also 
consider if they have an interest to declare under the Code of Conduct before 
participating;  

Page 33

Agenda Item 3
Appendix 1



16 | P a g e

• Committee Members’ questions and debate; 

• Agreement in any officer update to the report/recommendations or any changes 
proposed by Members to the recommendations; 

• Voting.

6 MEETINGS GUIDANCE  
6.1 To ensure probity and transparency, the following guidance should be followed when 

considering an application: 

• There must be no informal communication between Committee Members and any 
other person (including other Members).  This includes during any adjournments.  
Any questions or comments should be made openly and through the 
Chairman/Chair; 

• Members must be present for the whole of an item in order to be able to vote on 
that item.  If a Member arrives late, s/he must not vote on any item already in 
progress at the time of his/her arrival.  If a Member requires a comfort break, the 
Chairman/Chair should grant a short adjournment; 

• Where an application is part heard, i.e, it is determined over more than one 
Committee meeting, the only Members who may vote on the application are those 
Members who are present at all meetings when the application is considered;   

• Reasons must be given for any decision reached – this is a legal requirement and 
should be clear before any vote. 

7 VOTING 

7.1 The Committee’s voting procedure must be clear, transparent and easy to follow.  It 
is important that the public, the applicants and all other persons present understand 
what the Committee is voting upon.  This can be difficult where the Committee has to 
vote more than once on an application, or for example, to deal with motions to include 
planning conditions and obligations. 

7.2 All applications will usually be voted upon as follows: 

• No motions will be proposed during the debate of the matter, without the 
Chairman/Chair’s permission, to ensure a full debate on the matter under 
consideration; 

• The Chairman/Chair will determine when the debate is finished, clarify any 
changes made to the officer recommendation and the details of what is being 
moved, including any additional planning conditions, informatives or obligations 
proposed; 

• If Committee Members wish the item to be deferred for any reason (e.g. further 
negotiations or a site visit), this should be considered before any other formal 
decision making takes place on the recommendations; 

• The Chairman/Chair will invite any Committee Member to move and second the 
adoption of the officer’s recommendation either to grant or refuse planning 

Page 34

Agenda Item 3
Appendix 1



17 | P a g e

permission (as set out in the report).  Any changes or amendments to the Officer’s 
recommendation must be moved and seconded by Members and determined by 
the Committee before those in the Officer’s report; 

• Any motion proposed and seconded, will be voted upon; 

• If a motion to grant planning permission is not carried, or no Member proposes the 
officer’s recommendation, the Chairman/Chair will invite Members to move and 
second any other motion, which will then be voted upon.  Reasons must be given 
for either the grant or a refusal of a planning permission (Town and Country 
Planning Development Management Procedure). 

• The reasons to be given, where permission is refused or conditions imposed must: 

  be stated clearly and precisely; 

  be relevant and full; 

 specify all policies and proposals in the development plan which are relevant 
to the decision; and 

 give details of any direction given, or opposing view expressed, by the 
Secretary of State or a Government Department. 

8 PUBLIC SPEAKING  
8.1 Although the public have no legal right to speak at Planning Committee meetings, the 

Council recognises the value of representations on planning matters.  Therefore the 
Council has adopted a protocol which encourages public participation, by allowing 
those wishing to address the Planning Committee to be able to do so. The rights set 
out below are those that apply. 

Speakers
8.2 Up to 2 speakers who wish to object, and up to 2 who wish to support (which includes 

the agent/applicant) may make oral representations, with 3 minutes allowed per 
speaker. The following procedure will apply: 

• The agenda and reports for the meeting and relevant plans are published on the 
Council's website at least ten  clear working days before the meeting;

• The agenda papers will specify a date and time by which those wishing to speak 
on a planning application, must register their request to speak.
 

• In the event of a hybrid meeting, a speaker presenting remotely will be asked to 
submit a written statement that can be read out at the meeting in the event of any 
technical issues during the meeting. The statement must be of no more than 3 
minutes in length when read aloud. If a number of people wish to speak on a 
particular application, public speaking will normally be allocated in order of 
registration.

 

Page 35

Agenda Item 3
Appendix 1



18 | P a g e

• If written statement is not submitted, then a speaker’s place may be allocated to 
those on the speakers’ waiting list. Further information is available by contacting 
Democratic Services, email: democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk, tel: 01372 
732000.

• Only one speaker per household or organisation will be allowed; 

• In the case of large groups wishing to speak, they may be required to nominate a 
lead speaker or need to be represented by a Ward Member to ensure a fair 
balance of speakers – see 8.4 below); 

• If no advance notice of those wishing to speak in accordance with this Code, is 
given, there is no right to address the Committee; 

• Public speakers have no right of reply, and cannot engage in any debate. The 
purpose of having written statements is to support the holding of meetings which 
may have an element of being held remotely.  As such the written statements will 
not be passed on Planning Officers before the Committee Meeting where these 
statements are being made. Any statement which has to be read out, will be read 
out as it appears by the Legal or Democratic Services Officer. 

The Applicant or Agent 
8.3 The applicant or agent (as stated on the application form) will have three minutes to 

speak.  The rules at 8.2 above apply. 

Ward Members 
8.4 There are three categories of Ward Members who are can or must to address a 

Committee meeting:

 those wishing to speak on an application they have asked to be called in; 
 where the application is in their Ward 
 their adjourning Ward is directly affected by an Application 

8.5 Ward Members will be allowed to speak for three minutes each. They have no right 
of reply or to ask questions.  They should advise Democratic Services of their 
intention to address the Committee by noon of the day of the Committee meeting.

Part Heard & Adjourned Applications 

8.6 A ‘part heard’ application is one which has started to be heard at one committee but 
has not been possible to make a decision on the agenda item at that meeting.  An 
‘adjourned’ application is one which is on an agenda, but the Committee were unable 
to start dealing with the item.  

8.7 In exceptional circumstances where an application is part-heard (i.e. determined over 
more than one Committee meeting), the Chairman/Chair may consider whether to 
allow any or all parties additional speaking rights in the following circumstances: 

Page 36

Agenda Item 3
Appendix 1



19 | P a g e

• A party has requested a further right to speak and the Chairman/Chair is satisfied: 

 There is a significant gap or delay between the first and second Committee 
meetings; and/or 

 There has been material amendment in the nature of the application (but 
not requiring a fresh planning application). 

8.8 The Chairman/Chair will seek advice from Officers before exercising his/her 
discretion to allow further speaking rights under this section. 

8.9 For the avoidance of doubt, speakers who were not registered to speak at the original 
meeting are not permitted to speak on any part heard applications or on an adjourned 
application.  If the original speaker is unable to attend any part heard or adjourned 
application, they can nominate someone who can speak for them. The Chief Legal 
Officer will consider any such request for substitution.  

9 MEETING ETIQUETTE 
9.1 All representations should be heard in silence and without interruption.  The 

Chairman/Chair will not permit disruptive behaviour.  The Council’s Standing Orders 
on good order in meetings (CPR18) applies to Planning Committee.  The Committee 
is a meeting held in public, not a public meeting.  

10 VARIATION 
10.1 The Chairman/Chair may, in appropriate circumstances, vary the procedure set out 

above where it is appropriate to do so to ensure a fair hearing and on the advice of 
Officers.

Page 37

Agenda Item 3
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 38



Standards Committee
16 June 2021

COMMITTEE WORK PLAN 2021-2022

Head of Service: Amardip Healy, Chief Legal Officer
Wards affected: (All Wards);
Urgent Decision?(yes/no) No
If yes, reason urgent decision 
required:
Appendices (attached): 1: Draft Work Plan 2021-2022

Summary

To agree a Committee Work Plan for the Municipal Year 2021-2022

Recommendation (s)
The Committee is asked to:

(1) Consider and approve a Committee Work Plan for 2021-2022.

1 Reason for Recommendation

1.1 The annual work plan will help provide the necessary priorities for the 
Municipal Year.  This will help to identify the support and resources which 
may be needed during the course of the year.  

2 Background

2.1 Over the last 3 years the Council has been updating its Constitution and 
governance processes. The Standards Committee was formerly set up 
and started meeting on a regular basis from 2018.  As changes to the 
Constitution were being bought forward, the Committee took more of an 
active role in bringing together the various elements of the Constitution. 

2.2 For this reason the work of Standards Committee has grown over the 
years. The Committee has reached the stage were an agreed work plan 
for Municipal Year would help structure its work programme. 

Page 39

Agenda Item 4



Standards Committee
16 June 2021

2.3 The work plan has been developed to balance a number of needs. The 
Council needs to update its Constitution but it also needs to keep abreast 
of good practice in areas of governance, of the training and support of its 
Members.  The Work Plan for this year has been developed in response 
to a number of areas where further structure or development would 
support how the Council operates and meeting the development needs or 
Councillors. 

2.4 There may be issues which arise during the course of the year which 
require attention and so the Work Plan may need to adapt and flex as 
needed.  

2.5 There are a range of new items on the Work Plan as well as matters 
which are outstanding.  It is important to try an ensure all the work on the 
Work Plan is completed in year.  To help track progress there will be a 
Work Plan progress report on each agenda this year. The work Plan will 
require additional meetings to be added to the diary for 2022. 

2.6 Although most of the matters on the draft work plan are self-explanatory, 
it is useful to explain the background or reasoning for some of the items. 

Member Induction & Training Program

2.7 Following the Local Elections in 2019, the Council trialled a new approach 
to Member Induction.  The process delivered a structured approach to all 
the necessary activities which are a part of induction to the role of a 
Councillor. 

2.8 To build on the new approach which was taken, it is important to capture 
the learning lessons, particularly to those who were newly elected to the 
role of a Councillor.  To have an agreed approach to induction and 
member training over a term of office, is critically important to ensuring the 
right support is in place for a role, which is ever more demanding and 
complex.

2.9 Developing and mapping a program needs to start now to ensure it is in 
place for the next local elections in 2023.

Outside Bodies

2.10 The appointment to Outside Bodies requires a review, not just in terms of 
which bodies Members should be appointed to, but also in terms of the 
expected outcomes or deliverables from such appointments. There also 
needs to be guidance to Members in terms of what those appointments 
may involve.

2.11 A draft guidance note, “A guide for Councillors appointed to Outside 
Bodies”, was produced and circulated in 2019. However, work on 
reviewing Outside Bodies has not taken place.  This work does need to be 
undertaken, with approved guidance and processes in place for 2023.

Page 40

Agenda Item 4



Standards Committee
16 June 2021

Reporting on Ombudsman decisions

2.5 In October 2020, the Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman has 
issued guidance to Local Authorities on effective complaint handling.  A 
key element of the advice is the monitoring and learning from complaints. 
There is a growing practice of complaining to a Council’s Monitoring 
Officer of when complainants believe the Council has acted unlawfully 
across the sector. 

2.6 The Ombudsman recommends reporting on complaint handling 
performance annually and to make this information available to the public. 
It is therefore proposed that this report be bought to Standards 
Committee, pending the general of review of Committee Terms of 
Reference.

Officer & Member Indemnities 

2.7 The Council agreed a number of indemnities in the last Municipal Year 
because the Constitution did not cover the matters which arose.

2.8 One urgent indemnity was to enable a Member to proceed with a judicial 
review to set aside a wrongly issued planning permission. Although these 
occasions are extremely rare, it is important to have in place the 
necessary indemnities to allow the Council to take appropriate action 
quickly. 

Review of Code of Conduct Complaints 

2.9 In January 2020 the Committee agreed that an annual report would be 
bought to its first meeting at the start of the Municipal year.  It was 
accepted that since the review of the period from 2018 to end of 2020 was 
bought in January 2020, the next annual report would not be bought until 
the start of the 2022 Municipal Year. 

2.10 The Committee also agreed that key performance indicators would be 
incorporated into the reporting data, namely detail dates of complaints 
coming in, as well as the start and completion dates for any investigations 
that may take place.

2.11 It is therefore proposed to bring a report at the end of the current 
Municipal Year to agree the form the Annual report will take.   

3 Risk Assessment

Legal or other duties

3.1 Impact Assessment

3.1.1 None

Page 41

Agenda Item 4



Standards Committee
16 June 2021

3.2 Crime & Disorder

3.2.1 None

3.3 Safeguarding

3.3.1 None

3.4 Dependencies

3.4.1 None

3.5 Other

3.5.1 None

4 Financial Implications

4.1 None arising from the contents of this report

4.2 Section 151 Officer’s comments: None arising from the contents of 
this report. 

5 Legal Implications

5.1 None arising from the contents of this report. 

5.2 Monitoring Officer’s comments: None arising from the contents of this 
report. 

6 Policies, Plans & Partnerships

6.1 Council’s Key Priorities: The following Key Priorities are engaged: 
Effective Council.

6.2 Service Plans: The matter is not included within the current Service 
Delivery Plan.

6.3 Climate & Environmental Impact of recommendations: None arising 
from the contents of this report. 

6.4 Sustainability Policy & Community Safety Implications: None arising 
from the contents of this report. 

6.5 Partnerships: None arising from the contents of this report. 

7 Background papers

7.1 The documents referred to in compiling this report are as follows:

Previous reports:

Page 42

Agenda Item 4



Standards Committee
16 June 2021

 Review of Code of Conduct Complaints, Standards Committee, 18 
January 2021.

https://democracy.epsom-
ewell.gov.uk/documents/s18308/Review%20of%20Code%20of%20
Conduct%20Complaints.pdf 

 Indemnities, Council 16 February 2021

https://democracy.epsom-
ewell.gov.uk/documents/s19021/Indemnities.pdf 

 Election Indemnities, 16 February 2021

https://democracy.epsom-
ewell.gov.uk/documents/s19022/Election%20Indemnities.pdf

Other papers:

 Constitution 

 Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman, “Guidance on 
Effective Complaint Handling for Local Authorities”.

https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/reports/information-for-link-
officers?chapter=4 

Page 43

Agenda Item 4

https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/documents/s18308/Review%20of%20Code%20of%20Conduct%20Complaints.pdf
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/documents/s18308/Review%20of%20Code%20of%20Conduct%20Complaints.pdf
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/documents/s18308/Review%20of%20Code%20of%20Conduct%20Complaints.pdf
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/documents/s19021/Indemnities.pdf
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/documents/s19021/Indemnities.pdf
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/documents/s19022/Election%20Indemnities.pdf
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/documents/s19022/Election%20Indemnities.pdf
https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/reports/information-for-link-officers?chapter=4
https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/reports/information-for-link-officers?chapter=4


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 44



1

Standards Committee Work Plan 2021-2022

Provisional 
Meeting date 

Reports Commentary Progress Tracker

June 2021 Annual Work Plan To set the Committee’s Work Plan for the year 
ahead.

June 2021 Planning Code of Practice Review of Draft Planning Code of Practice. Part 
5, Section 8

2.11.2021 Review of LGA New Code of Conduct 
for Members

Standards Committee to be asked if they wish to 
adopt the new LGA code, stay with current one, 
or make some additions to pick up anything from 
the LGA Code.  

2.11.2021 Officer Scheme of Delegation & 
Exercise of Delegated Authority 

Key decisions to be defined and publication 
process published. 

2.11.2021 Consideration of Non Committee 
Member speaking rights at Committees 

Standing Orders
Part 3

2.11.2021 Officers Code of Conduct Review. Part 5 Section 2

2.11.2021 Committee Report Feedback Review reports in line with public participation 
work program.

2.11.2021 Review Committee Terms of Reference Review of committee terms of reference  - Part 3  

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 4
A

ppendix 1



2

2022 (before the end of the Municipal Year  2021-2022)

Extra Meeting Officer and Member Indemnities Review. Part 3

Extra Meeting Code of Conduct and Practice in 
Licensing Procedures and Hearings 

To be updated. Part 5 Section 6

Extra Meeting Protocol on Use of Call in Procedure To be updated. Part 5 Section 5

Extra Meeting Public Participation 
Standing Orders 

Standards Working Group 

Extra Meeting Member Induction & Training Program To agree a Member Induction and Training 
programme for term of office.  

Extra Meeting Reporting on Ombudsman decisions Good practice review 

Extra Meeting Review of Code of Code Complaints
 

Annual review

Extra Meeting Review of Appointment to Outside 
Bodies 

Good practice review

Extra Meeting Review of Work Plan Review of current Work Plan tracker and work 
for next Municipal year

Extra Meeting Publication of Gifts and Hospitality 
Registers 

Good Practice Review

P
age 46

A
genda Item

 4
A

ppendix 1


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	3 Constitution Update:  Planning Code of Practice
	Constitution Update:  Planning Code of Practice Appendix 1

	4 Committee Work Plan 2021-2022
	Committee Work Plan 2021-2022 Appendix 1


